

STOURPORT TENNIS AND SQUASH CLUB

Tan Lane Stourport on Severn Worcestershire

Telephone Number 01299 822673

RULES AND CONSTITUTION (2013 Edition) ("the Rules")

1. Name

The Club is called Stourport Tennis and Squash Club ("the Club").

2. Objects ("the Objects")

The objects of the Club are:-

- 2.1 To promote, improve and develop the playing of Tennis, Squash and Racket Ball and to support the interests of those sports to include the provision of facilities for the playing of Tennis and Squash and the provision of social facilities and such facilities for other sports including Racket Ball as may be approved by the Club from time to time.
- 2.2 The provision and maintenance of Club premises at Tan Lane Stourport on Severn or such other premises as may be decided upon by the Club.
- 2.3 The Club is a non-profit making organisation. All profit and surpluses will be used to maintain or improve the Club's facilities in accordance with the Objects of the Club as set out in the Club Rules or Constitution as the case maybe. No profit or surplus will be distributed other than to another non-profit making body or to specified members on winding-up or dissolution of the Club. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Club can pay for the supply of goods or services provided by a member of the Club so long as such arrangements are approved by the Committee and are bone fide and agreed on an arm's length basis. and does not breach Clause 9.4.

3. Application for Membership

- 3.1 The candidate's full name, address (except in the case of junior members) must be communicated in writing to the Membership Secretary who must prominently exhibit these particulars on the Club notice board for a period of at least 7 days before the candidate's election as a member. Any objections to the candidate becoming a member shall be delivered to the Membership Secretary in writing within 3 days of the exhibition of the said particulars.
- 3.2 Until a candidate is elected as a member and has paid his subscription in accordance with these rules he is not entitled to any of the privileges of the Club.

4. Classes of Membership

There shall be nine classes of member namely FULL, RESTRICTED, COUNTRY, JUNIOR, STUDENT, SOCIAL, TEMPORARY, LIFE and HONORARY and all members other than social members shall have full use of the sporting and social facilities subject to time constraints or other criteria as the Committee may decide from time to time.

5. Election to membership

Membership shall be open to all persons duly elected to membership under these rules who wish to partake in the sporting and social activities set out in the Objects and who qualify for one of the categories of membership set out in paragraph 4. above and detailed in paragraph 12. below. Candidates for membership may be elected by the Committee at its sole discretion but in the case of a spouse or partner of a Full Member the spouse or partner shall automatically become (no fee payable) a social member unless the Committee directs otherwise in its absolute discretion but such a person shall not be automatically precluded from becoming a full member. Persons of either sex are eligible for membership of the Club. No person shall be denied membership of the Club on the grounds of race, ethnic origin, creed, colour, age, disability, sex, occupation, sexual orientation, religion, political or other beliefs. All members of the Club are bound by the provisions of the Rules.

6. Management

- 6.1 The management of the Club to include financial management except for those matters reserved by these rules for the members of the Club in general meeting shall be entrusted to a committee (herein called "the Committee") which may include the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Treasurer, Secretary, Chairman of Bar Committee, Grounds and Premises Chairman and Membership Secretary ("the Officers"), the Trustees, the President of the Club and up to 4 other members of the Club from the two Sports Committees referred to and provided for in clause 6.9.
- 6.2 All members of the Committee (except the Trustees) shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting, and existing members are eligible for re-election. Members of the Committee shall act in good faith to the Club. Members of the committee must generally be eligible to vote at general meetings as per clause 19. Exceptionally, and if agreed by voting members at a General Meeting, up to 2 members who are not eligible to vote at a General Meeting may be elected to the Committee.
- 6.3. The Committee must meet every month (except in the month of August) and may meet at such other times as it determines.

- 6.4 At all meetings of the Committee 4 members thereof shall form a quorum.
- 6.5 If a Committee member dies, resigns or is expelled a casual vacancy shall be filled by the Committee in accordance with paragraph 10 below. A Committee member can be expelled from office and membership of the Committee by a two-thirds majority decision of the Committee.
- 6.6 Every Candidate for election to the Committee shall be proposed by one voting member and seconded by another voting member. Voting for all elections shall be by a show of hands
- 6.7 Each member of the Committee shall have one vote and a resolution carried by a simple majority shall be binding on the Club in respect of matters within the powers conferred on the Committee. In the case of equality of voting the Chairman of the meeting shall have a second or casting vote which the Chairman must exercise in the event of equality of voting. The Secretary or a member of the Committee nominated by him shall take minutes of all Committee meetings and general meetings of the Club.
- 6.8 The Committee may appoint one or more sub committees to conduct any of the Committees business and in particular will appoint a bar committee to be responsible for the purchase and supply of intoxicating liquor by and on behalf of the Club more particularly detailed in paragraph 9. below. Any such sub committee other than the bar committee may appoint additional members by way of cooption provided that the number of co-opted members shall not exceed one third of the strength of the Committee
- 6.9 The day to day management and overseeing of the games of:-
- (a) tennis
 - (b) squash and racket ball
- shall be by separate committee (herein called a "Sports Committee") for each of the above categories (a) (b). Such Sports Committees shall be subordinate to the Committee. The members of each of the Sports Committees shall be elected at the Annual General Meeting of the Club and shall include at least a Chairman and captains for the teams. Each Sports Committee shall have the right to co-opt other members to its committee but the total number of members on each Sports Committee shall not exceed 9 at any one time. Each year at the Annual General Meeting of the Club there shall be two members from each Sports Committee nominated and elected as members of the Committee. Each Sports Committee shall meet preferably each month and its business reported to the Committee. Any decision of the Sports Committee can be varied or altered by the Committee as it sees fit.

- 6.10 The Club agrees that each member of the Committee will be required, as a condition of election or appointment, to agree to be bound by and subject to these rules, the rules and regulations of the relevant County Lawn Tennis Association (“CTLA”) and The Lawn Tennis Association (“LTA”) Rules and the LTA Disciplinary Code, such agreement to contain an express **acknowledgement** that the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 applies and that the LTA and the Club can enforce any breach at its option and in its sole discretion.
- 6.11 To do all things as the Committee thinks fit to further the interests of the Club, to advance and safeguard the interests of Tennis, Squash and Racket Ball, to promote increases in participation at all levels of those sports or to as are otherwise incidental or conducive to the attainment of all or any of the Objects.
- 6.12 To take and retain a membership of the CLTA and Squash England and Racketball (SER) and Worcestershire Squash Racket Association (“WSRA”) (and by doing so become and remain registered as an associate of the LTA) and to comply with and uphold the Rules and Regulations of the CLTA, SE and WSRA as amended from time to time and the LTA Rules and the LTA Disciplinary Code as applicable to the Club.
- 6.13 Subject to the LTA Rules and SE and the LTA Disciplinary Code and the LTA’s wider jurisdiction, to discipline the members where permitted by its Rules/Regulations and to refer its members to be disciplined by the LTA or the CLTA (as appropriate).
- 6.14 **Finance**
- 6.14.1 All moneys payable to the Club shall be received by the person authorised by the Committee to receive such moneys and shall be deposited in a bank account in the name of the Club. No sum shall be drawn from that account except by cheque signed by two of the signatories who shall be members of the Committee. Any moneys not required for immediate use may be invested as the Committee in its discretion thinks fit.
- 6.14.2 Subject as otherwise provided or allowed by the Rules, the income and property of the Club shall be applied only in furtherance of the objects of the Club and no part thereof shall be paid by way of bonus, dividend or profit to any member.
- 6.14.3 The Committee shall have power to authorise the payment of remuneration and expenses to any officer, member of the Committee, member or employee of the Club and to any other person or persons for services rendered to the Club. The remuneration of a member of the Committee, member or employee of the Club or other person may take any form and may include any arrangements in connection with the payment of a pension, allowance or gratuity, or any death or sickness or disability benefits to, or in respect of, that person.

- 6.14.4 The Club may pay any reasonable expenses that members of the Committee properly incur in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Committee or at annual or extraordinary general meetings of the Club or otherwise in connection with the exercise of their powers and the discharge of their responsibilities in relation to the Club.
- 6.14.5 Full accounts of the financial affairs of the Club shall be prepared each year. These accounts shall be duly audited by the auditors.
- 6.15 Each member of the Committee must satisfy Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs fit and proper person test to be involved in the general control, management and administration of the club and must declare that he is a fit and proper person prior to being elected or appointed.

7. **Trustees**

- 7.1 There shall be not less than two or more than four Trustees. The Club at general meeting has the power to appoint a Trustee or Trustees by a simple majority vote.
- 7.2 The Trustees for the time being shall hold all of the property of the Club (other than day to day cash) to include freehold or leasehold property and proceeds of sale thereof in trust in their names for the use and benefit of the Club. On the removal or appointment of Trustees all necessary steps to vest the Club property in the newly appointed Trustee shall be taken forthwith
- 7.3 The Trustees shall each hold office until they respectively attain the age of 75 years or until resignation in writing to the Secretary if sooner or until the Club in general meeting passes a resolution removing him from office by a majority of not less than two thirds of members present and voting.
- Any proposal to remove a Trustee from office must be included in a notice of the business to be transacted at any general meeting posted for not less than 14 days prior to the meeting on the Club notice board
- 7.4 The Trustees must deal with the property of the Club as directed by resolution of the Committee and an entry in the minute book is conclusive and unequivocal evidence of such resolution
- 7.5 The Trustees shall act on the direction of the Committee to represent the Club in any litigation and shall have power to take all steps necessary to sell, lease, mortgage or dispose of or encumber Club property in compliance with those directions save that they must ensure compliance with Schedule Five of the Licensing Act 1964 or any statutory amendment or re-enactment thereof so that the registration of the Club as a registered members Club shall not be prejudiced but no purchaser, lessee or mortgagee or successor in title shall be concerned to enquire as to the legality of the Trustees action.

7.6 The Club shall promptly indemnify each and every one of the Trustees and members of the Committee out of the property assets and income of the Club for any action taken by them on the direction of the Committee. Members of the Club shall promptly personally indemnify the Trustees and members of the Committee or any one of them as the case maybe for any loss not met by Club property, assets or income.

8. Borrowing powers

8.1 If at any time the Committee passes a resolution authorising the Club to borrow money

(i) The Committee may instigate borrowings for the purposes of the Club the amount of money (either at one time or from time to time) and at a rate of interest in the form and manner and upon the security specified in the resolution and

(ii) the Trustees must at the direction of the Committee make any disposition of the Club property or any part of it and enter into any agreement in relation to the Club property as the Committee thinks proper to give security for the loan and interest or such other agreement it deems appropriate.

9. Purchase and supply of liquor and commission

9.1 Purchase for the Club and supply by the Club of intoxicating liquor must be in the discretion of a sub-committee of not less than 3 members aged 18 years or above being members of the Committee appointed for that purpose

9.2 If any member for any reason ceases to be a member of the Committee he automatically ceases to be a member of the sub-committee and another member of the Committee must be appointed in his place.

9.3. No one may at any time receive at the expense of the Club any commission, percentage or similar payment on or with reference to purchases of intoxicating liquor by the Club.

9.4 No one may directly or indirectly derive any pecuniary benefit from the supply of intoxicating liquor by or on behalf of the Club to members or guests apart from any benefit accruing to the Club as a whole and apart also from any benefit which a person derives indirectly by reason of the supply giving rise to or contributing to a general gain from the carrying on of the Club.

10. Casual vacancies

10.1 The Committee may at any time and from time to time fill any casual vacancy among the Officers and the Committee

10.2 Any Officer or member of the Committee so appointed holds office only until the next following Annual General Meeting but is then eligible for re-election.

11. Entrance fee and subscriptions

- 11.1 The entrance fee is whatever sum the Committee determines from time to time
- 11.2 The annual subscription is whatever sum the Committee determines from time to time making special provision for country, junior, student, social, life and honorary members as well as for family membership, discounts as settled upon by the Committee from time to time.
- 11.3 Members of the Committee shall be entitled to a reduction of 30% of the annual subscription payable by them according to their category of membership. The Treasurer is not entitled to receive an honorarium in addition thereto. Such reduction in subscription shall only apply provided that a member of the committee attends meetings of the committee on a regular and frequent basis and diligently discharges his duties.

12. Full, Restricted, Country, Junior, Student, Social, Temporary Honorary and Life Members

- 12.1 Members who have paid a full senior subscription and are entitled to use of the sporting and other facilities are Full Members and this applies to Restricted Membership. Members are subject to time constraints.
- 12.2 Members residing outside a radius of 15 miles from the Club are Country Members and are not full senior members.
- 12.3 Members who shall not have the use of any of the sporting facilities are Social Members.
- 12.4 Members undergoing full time education aged over 18 years as at 1st January in each year are Student Members subject to such other requirements for qualification as the Committee may impose from time to time.
- 12.5 Members who are under the age of 18 years as at the 1st January in each year are Junior Members
- 12.6 Members upon whom the Committee shall have bestowed life membership for services to the Club are Life Members
- 12.7 Members who have been elected as Honorary Members by the Committee are Honorary Members
- 12.8 The Committee shall (it its absolute discretion) stipulate and vary the terms of any class of membership set out in paragraph 4 as it sees fit from time to time and in particular may grant temporary or corporate memberships as it sees fit.

13. Subscription date

- 13.1 All annual subscriptions are payable on the 30th day of April in each year without demand (except the first subscription of a new member).
- 13.2 If a member fails to pay his subscription (or a monthly instalment thereof if payment

by monthly instalments had previously been agreed) within 30 days after it becomes due and the Treasurer or Secretary sends notice in writing to his address as recorded in the books of the Club calling upon him to pay the subscription (or monthly instalment as the case maybe) within 14 days then the Committee may terminate his membership without further notice if he fails to pay

- 13.3 A person joining the Club for the first time shall not be required to pay a joining fee although the Executive Committee shall have power to levy a joining fee if circumstances warrant it at the discretion of the Executive Committee. However, any member who fails to pay his subscription by the due date (or a monthly instalment thereof aforesaid) and has his membership terminated under Clause 13.2 above maybe required to pay a joining fee in a sum set by the Executive Committee before he maybe accepted as a member at any future date at the absolute discretion of the Committee

14. Annual General Meetings

- 14.1 An Annual General Meeting of the Club must be held within 5 months of the end of the financial year and 15 months must not elapse without an Annual General meeting. Fourteen days' notice to members must be given.

14.2 At each Annual General Meeting

- (i) The accounts for the previous financial year (having been posted on the Club notice board 21 days before the Annual General Meeting) ended on 30th April (or such other year end that is passed from time to time) prior to the meeting (having first been audited by the Club's Auditors or otherwise approved in accordance with current accounting practice) must be presented and if accepted, passed.
- (ii) The Officers and the Committee must be elected along with the members of the two Sports Committees
- (iii) An Auditor or an independent reporting accountant must be elected
- (iv) Any other business that has been communicated to the Secretary and included in the notice of the meeting to the members may be conducted.

15. Extraordinary General Meeting

- 15.1 Other than for the purpose of dissolution of the Club an Extraordinary General Meeting may be convened at any time and must be convened within 21 days on the requisition of one fifth of the members of the Club for the time being or 30 members whichever is the less or upon the discretion of the Committee.
- 15.2 A requisition must state the purpose for which a meeting is required and must be remitted to the Secretary.

16. Notice of meetings and notices generally

At least 14 days before any general meeting the Secretary must send to every

member in person or at his postal or electronic address as recorded in the Club's books or in the case of an Annual General Meeting only, post on the Club notice board a notice of the meeting stating the time when, and the place where it will be held, and the business to be conducted.

17. Business at General Meetings

17.1 The business at any general meeting must be limited to that provided for by these Rules and any further matters set out in the notice convening the meeting.

17.2 The quorum at any General Meeting is 30 members. If no quorum is present within 30 minutes of start time, the meeting is adjourned at the direction of the Committee.

18. Regulations

18.1 The Committee may from time to time make repeal and amend any regulations (not inconsistent with these Rules) as it thinks expedient for the management and well being of the Club. Such regulations shall be properly recorded and published on the notice board.

18.2 All regulations made by the Committee under this rule are binding on the members until repealed by the Committee or set aside by a resolution of a General Meeting of the Club.

19. Votes

19.1 Only the following are entitled to vote at meetings:-

The President, each Full Member, Restricted Member, Student Member, Country Member, Life Member and Honorary Member who shall each have one vote at all general meetings of the Club.

19.2 Except where otherwise required by these Rules any resolution shall be carried by a simple majority at any general meeting of the Club to include the Annual General Meeting

19.3 In the case of equality of voting the Chairman of the meeting (being any meeting) shall have a second or casting vote which the Chairman must exercise in the event of equality of voting

20. Chairman

The Chairman of the Club presides at all meetings of the Club, but if he is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting or has signified his inability to be present at the meeting the Vice Chairman shall preside but if also the vice Chairman is not present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting or has signified his inability to be present at the meeting then the Members present and entitled to vote may choose one of their number to be the chairman of the meeting.

21. Duties of the Secretary

It shall be the duty of the Secretary to ensure that minutes of all meetings are taken

by him or his nominee and preserved, to give not less than 14 days notice on the Club notice board of any Annual General Meeting and give appropriate notice of any Extraordinary General Meeting (in accordance with these rules) to maintain, at the Club premises, a full list of members, a guest book and to maintain a visitors record, to undertake such other responsibilities as are required by these Rules by statute or are directed by the Committee from time to time and, with the Chairman for the time being to apply to renew the Clubs registration certificate not less than 28 days prior to its expiry.

22. Duties of the Treasurer

The Treasurer shall keep all usual and proper books of account as may be directed by the Committee or recommended by the Club Auditors to enable him to present an accurate and complete financial report to each meeting of the Committee and to the Annual General Meeting of the Club and in particular shall prepare a separate account in respect of the purchase and supply by the Club of intoxicating liquor. The accounts to be presented to the Annual General Meeting shall be certified or approved as required by current accounting practice by Auditors appointed from time to time by the Club in general meeting.

23. Disciplinary Procedures

- 23.1 The Committee may suspend any member from Club membership and use of the Club facilities, if the members conduct at the Club premises or elsewhere is considered in the discretion of the Committee to be detrimental to the interests and reputation of the Club.
- 23.2 Within 7 days of such suspension the name of the suspended member and a brief resume of the allegations leading to the suspension shall be posted on the Club notice board and shall specify a date, not more than 28 days after the date of the suspension, when the Committee will consider any representations made by members in writing, to the Secretary within 21 days of the suspension
- 23.3 Not later than 7 days after the suspension the Secretary shall supply to the suspended member at his last known or registered address a statement of the grounds for suspension, of the date specified for the Committee to consider the matter further, the sanctions available to the Committee and informing the member of his right to attend that meeting accompanied by a legal representative or another Club member or parent.
- 23.4 The Committee also has power to reprimand any member for unbecoming conduct and require that member's attendance before the Committee at its sole discretion. Any member so required to attend before the Committee will comply with that request.
- 23.5 At the Committee meeting details of the allegations and or representations made

by Club members shall be narrated to the member or his representative and a full opportunity given to the member or his representative to address the Committee, to call witnesses or produce further **representations** from members, and shall reasonably consider any request from the suspended member for an adjournment to enable him to deal with allegations and **representations** made. At the conclusion of the **representations** the general Committee may request the suspended member and his representative and any others permitted to be present who are not Committee members to retire, whilst consideration is given to the evidence received. The Committee may, by a simple majority, terminate or reinstate the membership of the suspended member or determine a specified time during which the suspension shall continue. The Committee's decision shall be final and the decision, but not the reasons therefore shall be communicated to the member in writing and published for 7 days on the Club notice board

24. Effect of ceasing to be a Member

24.1 On ceasing to be a member of the Club a person

- (a) forfeits all right to and claim upon the Club and its property and funds and
- (b) shall not be entitled to any privileges of the Club

24.2 Any member can resign from membership of the Club on seven days' written notice to the Committee. No refunds of subscriptions will be made.

25. Temporary Members

25.1 The Committee may elect temporary members of the Club on such terms and at such subscription as it decides by resolution.

25.2 No temporary member may be elected or re-elected for a period that exceeds in all 4 months.

25.3 Rules 3 and 5 apply to the election of temporary members.

25.4 No-one may be elected to temporary membership unless he is precluded by distance or other circumstances from making full use of the privileges of membership.

26. Guests

26.1 Any member may introduce guests (no more than 5 on any one occasion) to the Club providing that no-one whose application for membership has been declined or that has been expelled from the Club may be introduced as a guest.

26.2 The member introducing a guest must upon admission to the Club premises enter the name and address of the guest together with his own name in a book which must be kept on the Club premises.

26.3 No one may be admitted as a guest on more than 4 occasions in any calendar year.

26.4 The member introducing a guest shall be responsible for the conduct of the guest

and observance of Club rules and by-laws during the visits to the Club and shall accompany the guest at all reasonable times.

26.5 The Committee has the power to bar any one being admitted to the Club premises as a guest as it sees fit

27. Admission of visitors

27.1 Members of visiting sports teams and supporters for each member of the team who are competing in events against Club teams may at the discretion of the Committee and on the occasion of the event only be admitted to the premises free of charge and shall be entitled to purchase intoxicating liquor for consumption on the premises only.

27.2 The Committee shall have discretion to allow on such occasions as it deems appropriate admission to persons attending a private function organised by any individual club or body corporate on such terms as it may direct. Such visitors may use only the facilities authorised by the Committee and may purchase intoxicating liquor for consumption on the premises only.

27.3 The Committee has the power to bar any one being admitted to the Club premises as a guest as it sees fit.

27.4 All visitors and guests at the Club are bound by the Rules and as may be directed by the Committee and this includes the rules of the LTA, CLTA, SE and WSRA.

28. Opening of Club premises

28.1 The Committee shall from time to time make such regulations as it deems fit as to when the Club shall be open and closed to members

28.2 The Committee may at its absolute discretion permit events and functions at the Club premises requiring that members be admitted to part of the Club premises only by the purchase of a ticket for such event or by such other means as the Committee may decide.

Any person not purchasing a ticket or meeting the requirements of the Committee will be excluded from participating in or benefiting from the event or function and shall be excluded from that part of the Club premises.

29. Permitted hours

29.1 The permitted hours for the supply of intoxicating liquors shall be from Monday to Saturday 12.00 noon and 11.00 pm on Sunday from 12.00 noon to 10.30 pm on Good Friday and Christmas Day 12.00 noon until 3.00 pm and 7.00 pm to 10.30 pm or such other times as directed by the Committee but in accordance with current licensing law

29.2 Intoxicating liquor may be sold and supplied on the Club premises to members guests and visitors (for consumption on the Club premises only) admitted in accordance with these rules and current licensing law

- 29.3 Only members may purchase alcohol for consumption off the premises
- 29.4 No person may receive at the expense of the Club directly or indirectly any commission percentage or similar payment on or with reference to the purchase of intoxicating liquor by the Club or any pecuniary benefit from the supply of intoxicating liquor by or on behalf of the Club to members guests and visitors

30. **Modification of Rules**

- 30.1 No alteration or addition to these Rules may be made except by resolution carried by a majority of two thirds of the members present at a general meeting the notice of which shall contain particulars of the proposed alteration or addition.
- 30.2 As soon as possible, and in any case within 28 days after the making of any alteration or addition to these Rules the Secretary must give written notice of the alteration or addition to the Chief Officer of Police and to the proper officer of the Local Authority of the District in which the Club is situated and to the Clerk to the Licensing Justices or to such other Authorities bodies or persons at such times and on such occasions as may be required by the Licensing Laws in force from time to time.

31. **Interpretation of rules**

- 31.1 The Committee is the sole authority for the interpretation of these Rules and the regulations made by it from time to time.
- 31.2 The decision of the Committee upon any question of interpretation or upon any matter affecting the Club and not provided for by these Rules or by the regulations is final and binding on the Members.
- 31.3 Where there is a conflict between the Rules and any rule of the CTLA, LTA, SE or WSRA these Rules shall prevail.

32. **Heading**

The headings of these Rules are for ease of reference only and are not to be taken into account in their interpretation.

33. **Gender**

In these Rules where the context admits the masculine shall include the feminine and vice versa.

34. **Dissolution**

If at any general meeting a resolution for the dissolution of the Club is passed by a majority of the members present and at an extraordinary general meeting held not less than 6 weeks later and of which not less than 3 weeks written notice has been sent to each member by post at the addresses recorded in the books of the Club (other than Junior Members) and at which not less than half of the members are present that resolution is confirmed by a resolution passed by a majority of two thirds of the members voting on it, the Committee must immediately or at such

future date as is specified in the resolution ensure a realisation of the property of the Club and after discharge of all debts liabilities all proper expenses . incurred and after repayment of any unspent grant where such was a condition of the original grant shall not be paid or distributed among the members of the club but shall be given or transferred to one or more of the following sporting or charitable bodies:

- 1- The LTA for use in community related initiatives for the game of tennis
- 2- SER for use in community related initiatives for the game of squash and the game of racketball
- 3- A registered charitable organisation.

.....